
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

v.

DAVID PUGH
MICHAEL PARKER,
ROBERT WESTON

:
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:

:

:

:

:

:

:

:

CRIMINAL NO. _____________

DATE FILED:    April 29, 2010

VIOLATIONS:
21 U.S.C. § 846 (conspiracy to distribute
oxycodone, alprazolam, codeine and
marijuana - 1 count)
21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1) (distribution and
possession with intent to distribute
oxycodone, alprazolam and marijuana - 5
counts)
18 U.S.C. § 924(c) (possession of firearm a
in furtherance of a drug trafficking crime
- 1 count)
18 U.S.C. § 922(g)(1) (felon-in-possession
of a firearm - 2 counts)
21 U.S.C. § 844(a) (possession of
alprazolam and marijuana - 1 count)
18 U.S.C. § 2 (aiding & abetting)
Notice of forfeiture

INDICTMENT

COUNT ONE

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT:

1. On or about January 6, 2010, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, defendants

DAVID PUGH and
MICHAEL PARKER

conspired and agreed, together and with others known and unknown to the grand jury, to

knowingly and intentionally distribute and possess with intent to distribute mixtures and

substances containing oxycodone, a Schedule II controlled substance, methadone, a Schedule II
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controlled substance, alprazolam, a Schedule IV controlled substance, codeine, a Schedule II

controlled substance, and marijuana, a schedule I controlled substance, in violation of Title 21,

United States Code, Section 841(a)(1), (b)(1)(C), (b)(1)(D), and (b)(2).

MANNER AND MEANS

It was part of the conspiracy that:

2. Defendants DAVID PUGH and MICHAEL PARKER sold controlled

substances in hand-to-hand transactions outside 70 E. Garfield Avenue in Philadelphia.

3. Defendants DAVID PUGH and MICHAEL PARKER used a house,

located at 70 E. Garfield Street in Philadelphia, as a “stash house” for the purpose of storing

quantities of controlled substances and packaging materials for sale.

4. Defendants DAVID PUGH and MICHAEL PARKER used another

house, located at 80 E. Garfield Street in Philadelphia, for the purpose of temporarily storing

quantities of controlled substances for sale, in order to avoid apprehension by the police.

5. Defendants DAVID PUGH and MICHAEL PARKER possessed

firearms to protect the controlled substances that they intended to sell as well as the cash

proceeds from their controlled substances sales.
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OVERT ACTS

In furtherance of the conspiracy, and to accomplish its objects, defendants

DAVID PUGH and MICHAEL PARKER, and others known and unknown to the grand jury,

committed the following overt acts, among others, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania:

On or about January 6, 2010:

1. Defendant MICHAEL PARKER sold five pills containing alprazolam

and a jar containing marijuana to defendant ROBERT WESTON.

2.  Defendant DAVID PUGH sold three pills containing oxycodone to a

customer known to the grand jury.

3. Defendant MICHAEL PARKER possessed for distribution seven pills

containing alprazolam.

4. While running into the residence located at 70 E. Garfield Street in

Philadelphia to evade apprehension by Philadelphia Police officers, defendant DAVID PUGH:

(a) possessed: (i) a 20 gauge Ithaca Model-37 shotgun with an

obliterated serial number; and (ii) a .22 caliber semiautomatic Remington rifle, with serial

number 2327723, to protect the controlled substances intended for sale and the proceeds of the

sales of controlled substances; and

(b) possessed for distribution six pills containing oxycodone, 17 pills

containing methadone, 120 pills containing alprazolam, and approximately $1,173 in cash.

5. Inside the residence located at 70 E. Garfield Street in Philadelphia,

defendants DAVID PUGH and MICHAEL PARKER possessed for distribution codeine and 
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marijuana.         

6. Inside the residence located at 80 E. Garfield Street in Philadelphia,

defendants DAVID PUGH and MICHAEL PARKER:

(a)  possessed for distribution codeine, oxycontin, methadone, alprazolam,

and marijuana; and 

(b)  stored a .357 caliber semi-automatic Sig handgun, Model P2000SK,

serial number 125-000907, loaded with 10 live rounds of ammunition, to protect their drug

trafficking operation, the controlled substances intended for sale, the proceeds from the sales of

controlled substances, and to evade apprehension by police.

   All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 846.
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COUNT TWO

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

On or about January 6, 2010, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, defendant

DAVID PUGH

knowingly and intentionally distributed approximately three Percocet tablets, each of which is a

mixture and substance containing a detectable amount of oxycodone, a Schedule II controlled

substance.

In violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(1), (b)(1)(C).
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COUNT THREE

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

On or about January 6, 2010, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, defendant

MICHAEL PARKER

knowingly and intentionally distributed approximately five Xanax tablets, each of which is a

mixture and substance containing a detectable amount of alprazolam, a Schedule IV controlled

substance.

In violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(1), (b)(2).
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COUNT FOUR

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

On or about January 6, 2010, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, defendant

MICHAEL PARKER

knowingly and intentionally distributed a mixture and substance containing a detectable amount

of marijuana, a Schedule I controlled substance.

In violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(1), (b)(1)(D).
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COUNT FIVE

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

On or about January 6, 2010, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, defendant

MICHAEL PARKER

knowingly and intentionally possessed with intent to distribute approximately seven Xanax

tablets, each of which is a mixture and substance containing a detectable amount of alprazolam, a

Schedule IV controlled substance.

In violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(1), (b)(2).
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COUNT SIX

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

On or about January 6, 2010, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, defendant

DAVID PUGH

knowingly and intentionally possessed with intent to distribute:

 (1) approximately six Endocet tablets, each of which is a mixture and substance

containing a detectable amount of oxycodone, a Schedule II controlled

substance; 

(2)  approximately 17 Methadone tablets, each of which is a mixture and substance

containing a detectable amount of methadone, a Schedule II controlled

substance; and 

(3) approximately 120 Xanax tablets, each of which is a mixture and substance

containing a detectable amount of alprazolam, a Schedule IV controlled

substance.

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(1), (b)(1)(C), and

(b)(2).
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COUNT SEVEN

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

On or about January 6, 2010, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania,

defendants

DAVID PUGH and
MICHAEL PARKER

knowingly and intentionally possessed with intent to distribute: 

(1) approximately 38 Endocet tablets, each of which is a mixture and substance

containing a detectable amount of oxycodone, a Schedule II controlled

substance; 

(2) approximately 166 oxycontin tablets, each of which is a mixture and substance

containing a detectable amount of oxycodone, a Schedule II controlled

substance; 

(3) approximately five Methadone tablets, each of which is a mixture and

substance containing a detectable amount of methadone, a Schedule II

controlled substance; 

(4) approximately 25 Xanax tablets, each of which is a mixture and substance

containing a detectable amount of alprazolam, a Schedule IV controlled

substance; 

(5) mixtures and substances containing a detectable amount of codeine, a Schedule

II controlled substance; and 

(6) a mixture and substance containing a detectable amount of marijuana, a

Schedule I controlled substance.
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All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(1), (b)(1)(C),

(b)(1)(D), and (b)(2).
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COUNT EIGHT

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

On or about January 6, 2010, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, defendant

DAVID PUGH

knowingly possessed a firearm, that is: (1) a 20 gauge Ithaca Model-37 Shotgun with an obliterated

serial number; and (2) a .22 caliber semiautomatic Remington rifle, with serial number 2327723, in

furtherance of a drug trafficking crime for which he may be prosecuted in a court of the United

States, that is, conspiracy to distribute a controlled substance, in violation of Title 21, United States

Code, Section 846, and possession with intent to distribute a controlled substance, in violation of

Title 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(1).

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 924(c)(1).
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COUNT NINE

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

On or about January 6, 2010, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania,

defendant

DAVID PUGH,

having been convicted in a court of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania of a crime punishable by

imprisonment for a term exceeding one year, knowingly possessed, in and affecting interstate

commerce, firearms, that is (1) a 20 gauge Ithaca Model 37 Shotgun with an obliterated serial

number; and (2) a .22 caliber semiautomatic Remington rifle, with serial number 2327723.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 922(g)(1).
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COUNT TEN

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

On or about January 6, 2010, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania,

defendant

ROBERT WESTON,

having been convicted in a court of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania of a crime punishable by

imprisonment for a term exceeding one year, knowingly possessed, in and affecting interstate

commerce, a firearm, that is a .40 caliber Hi-Point firearm, model JCP, with an obliterated serial

number, loaded with six live rounds of ammunition.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 922(g)(1).
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COUNT ELEVEN

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

On or about January 6, 2010, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania,

defendant

ROBERT WESTON,

knowingly possessed a controlled substance, that is, five pills containing alprazolam, a Schedule IV

controlled substance, and a mixture and substance containing marijuana, a Schedule I controlled

substance.

In violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 844(a).
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NOTICE OF FORFEITURE

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1.  As a result of the violations of Title 21, United States Code, Sections

841(a)(1) and 846, set forth in this indictment, defendants

DAVID PUGH and
MICHAEL PARKER

shall forfeit to the United States of America:

(a) any property used or intended to be used, in any manner or part, to

commit, or to facilitate the commission of, such offenses, including:

(I) approximately $1,173 in cash defendant PUGH had on his

person on or about January 6, 2010;

(ii) approximately $90 in cash stored in 70 E. Garfield Street on or

about January 6, 2010 in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania; and

(b) any property constituting, or derived from, proceeds obtained

directly or indirectly from the commission of such offenses.

(2) If any of the property subject to forfeiture, as a result of any act or

omission of the defendants:

(a) cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

(b) has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

(c) has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;

(d) has been substantially diminished in value; or

(e) has been commingled with other property which cannot be divided without

difficulty; it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section
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853(p), to seek forfeiture of any other property of the defendants up to the value of the property

subject to forfeiture.

All pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 853.

3. As a result of the violations of Title 18, United States Code, Section 924(c) and

922(g)(1), set forth in this indictment, defendants

DAVID PUGH and
MICHAEL PARKER

shall forfeit to the United States of America the firearms and ammunition involved in the commission

of such offense, including, but not limited to: 

(a). a 20 gauge Ithaca Model-37 Shotgun with an obliterated serial number;

(b) a .22 caliber semiautomatic Remington rifle, with serial number

2327723; and

(c) a .357 caliber semi-automatic Sig handgun, Model P2000SK, serial

number 125-000907, loaded with ten live rounds of ammunition.

4. As a result of the violations of Title 18, United States Code, Section 922(g)(1),

set forth in this indictment, defendant

ROBERT WESTON

shall forfeit to the United States of America the firearm and ammunition involved in the commission

of such offense, including, but not limited to: 

(a). a .40 caliber Hi-Point firearm, model number JCP, with an obliterated

serial number, loaded with six live rounds of ammunition.
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All pursuant to Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461(c), and Title 18, United

States Code, Section 924(d). 

A TRUE BILL:

                                                          
FOREPERSON

                                                                 
MICHAEL LEVY
United States Attorney


